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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202401003 Consult Tracking System

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	January 29, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	February 7, 2024

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	February 20, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What are the eligibility criteria other than mentioned in the RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	There are no eligibility requirements mentioned in the RFP.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	We are a Texas incorporated firm having development offices in India. Are we eligible for this RFP to bid?

	
	Answer

	
	All interested parties are invited to submit a bid under this RFP.  


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Is this an on-site requirement or remote work also permitted?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Before we engage in an RFP - we need to understand the size of the engagement. Can you please let me know how many user licenses this RFP is for?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Part II, A.5. of the RFP.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F - Page 1
	Regarding REDCap integration potential - are you able to provide a summary of your REDCap deployment? The RFP mentions “local” and that might imply difficulty in API or direct DB access. Is REDCap deployed in Azure/AWS/GCP or another public cloud? Have you enabled API access to the project? Here is good reference material about doing so from the Children’s Hospital of Philidelphia Research Institute: https://education.arcus.chop.edu/redcap-api/#enabling-the-api 

There are many options for integration that we can elaborate on with a little more clarity. 

	
	Answer

	
	REDCap is currently deployed locally and not in the cloud. The Department does use APIs with REDCap but have not used in on the consult system at this time.


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F - Page 3, Section 5
	“Concurrent” users can imply a lot of potential nuance - is there any history or specific use case level context or concern you can share about the ability for Concurrent Administrators or Concurrent Users to participate in the system at the same time? 

	
	Answer

	
	During the height of the Covid-19 pandemic, there were twenty (20) staff answering the intake line and anywhere from thirty (30) to fifty (50) staff responding to the consult cases and entering data into the system. The proposed solution will need to allow for expansion in case of future events.


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART II – Scope of Services to be performed
	Has State of Maine reviewed or have demoed any SaaS or PaaS offerings that align with the offerings?

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART II – Scope of Services to be performed
	Has State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services portfolio have applications that use MS Dynamics 365 or Salesforce based applications?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART II – Scope of Services to be performed
	Does State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services envision any integrations that may be needed in the near term other than the 2 identified (Active Directory and Potential REDCap based on solution)? 

	
	Answer

	
	Not at this time.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Can the Systems Integrators use Global Teams for performing work? Work can be planned in a way to limit the work to development environment and without accessing production data if necessary.

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, system integrators may use global teams for performing work (i.e., with other team members in other countries).  However, all/ any data – test or production must stay within the Continental United States.


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 9 – Point 8
	Can the State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services offer some insights into the volume of current support needs such as number of issues, number of users, general SLA requirements?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Part II, A.6. of the RFP for conversion requirements.  Approx. five thousand (5,000) records in a typical year.

Refer to Part II, A.5. of the RFP for number of users.

Bidders are required to provide a plan of support and maintenance including applicable SLAs along with levels and amounts of support, refer to Appendix F


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 5 – Purpose and Background
	Can you please advise the number of users that will be using the system:

· State of Maine Staff

· Medical providers and public are expected to use the system outside of State of Maine. It will be helpful if you can split by how many of this group may submit it anonymously vs submitting after logging in such as providers?

How many of these may be external systems such as labs submitting data vs provider users submitting data?

	
	Answer

	
	All users will be State or contracted staff. The current system is managed through an intake phone line, not online submissions. This system is not intended to receive lab data.


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8 – Section 4 - Reporting
	What tools and technologies are commonly used by State of Maine today for ad-hoc reporting and queries?

	
	Answer

	
	SSIS, Tableau, Power BI, and SQL.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8 – Section 7 - Performance
	What is the current volume of cases that are processed by State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services?

	
	Answer

	
	Approx five thousand (5,000) consult reports in a standard year.


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 5 of Response Submission Template
	a. Does confidential patient data require advanced encryption above 128-bit standard? 
b. Does your IT team require ownership of encryption keys for data encryption? 
c. Do field updates need to be tracked to provide history of record updates?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The State requires encryption following NIST special publication 800-53, FIPS 140-2 compliant.  Sensitive and restricted data should follow AES-256 as a standard and preferably be encrypted at rest and in flight.
b. Currently the State produces, controls, and distributes encryption keys. 

c. Yes.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 5 of Main RFP, Purpose and Background 
	When consults are assigned to "appropriate teams or staff," are these all Maine CDC staff or are there scenarios where the consult is assigned to external parties such as the geographically based Epidemiologist? - Section: Purpose and Background

Does any 3rd party, external to CDC staff, require access to the system/data?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8 of Main RFP, Product Management Administration
	Are the 100 concurrent users all state of Maine or Maine CDC staff?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8 of Main RFP, Product Management Administration
	Can you please define the different user groups/roles that would accommodate the 100 concurrent users? (example 5 admin, 10 approvers etc.) 

	
	Answer

	
	Currently there are five (5) staff answering the intake line and inputting consult requests. There are three (3 ) to five (5) system administrators and ten (10) to fifty (50) staff responding to consults and adding information back into the system at any time.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8 of Main RFP, System Capabilities
	"Integrating with existing local REDCap instance for secure disease reporting"

a. Can you please provide more information about REDCap instance and its underlying technology? 
b. What type of integrations/APIs are exposed by REDCap to exchange data?

	
	Answer

	
	a. REDCap version 13.4.12 is on a local server.  The Department intends to upgrade to 14.0.1 in the near future.
b. The Department has existing APIs with federal CDC and local surveillance system.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8 of Main RFP, Data Conversion
	Can you please provide estimated number of fields per record that needs to be mapped in new system? We just need ballpark number.

	
	Answer

	
	Approximately twenty (20) fields per record.


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Cost Proposal
	a. How many state users needs to be trained ? 
b. Is state ok with train-the-trainer model for training ?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Approx. one hundred (100).
b. Yes.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 14 of Main RFP, Implementation - Work Plan
	What is state’s preferred duration for system implementation ? ( e.g., 6 months, 8 months etc.)

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder discretion to propose a reasonable implementation period.


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 1 of Main RFP, Proposal Submission Deadline
	Can state provide 2 week extension to submission deadline for this RFP? We have asked many important questions to the State in this Q&A, and post receiving answers to these questions, we need additional time to incorporate your feedback into our technical proposal.

This additional time will enable vendors to submit quality and compliant proposal.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not intend to extend the Proposal Submission Deadline.


	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not Applicable
	What is estimated budget for this project?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department declines to answer.


	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part III C.1 Page 10
	Regarding the response deadline date of February 20th; while we are fully prepared to provide a response by that date, we recognize the importance of this project and the need for DHHS to receive a thorough and comprehensive response.  Realizing that the responses to the questions is anticipated on February 13th, we respectfully request a four (4) week extension to the response deadline to enable respondents to fully incorporate the answers and provide a comprehensive response to this important RFP.  

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not intend to extend the Proposal Submission Deadline.


	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV II.2 Page 12
	Do we need to include Appendix D (Subcontractors Form) if we are not using subcontractors for this bid?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department would request Appendix D indicate “no subcontractors will be utilized”.


	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix C Page 22
	In the "Present a brief statement of qualifications…" box, it is stated that we may "expand this form and use additional pages to provide this information." Do we need to keep the response in the assigned box or can we provide an attachment to answer this requirement?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must keep their response in the assigned box and expand it as needed. 


	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV 1 Page 14
	Please confirm that the initial period of performance includes any required time for implementation.

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, the initial period of performance would include implementation.


	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section III Appendix F Attachment # Ten (10): Implementation - Work Plan Page 14.
	Can the bidder submit their own work plan, milestones schedule, and payment plan for Implementation?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must utilize Appendix F and G to provide their work plan, milestone schedule, and cost for implementing the proposed solution. 


	30
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Cost Proposal - Technical Services Form. Tab: Schedule 6.  Training 
	Is there a Limited # of hours estimated by the State for Training?

	
	Answer

	
	No, it is at the Bidder’s discretion.


	31
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Cost Proposal - Technical Services Form. Tab: Schedule 6.  Training
	a. Should Column D multiply Column B (Cost per Resource) and C (Number of Resources) to get total by row? 
b. Will the State provide an updated Cost Proposal Form?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Cost per Resource (column B) multiplied by Number of Resources (column C) equals Total Cost (column D).
b. No, it is the Bidders responsibility to ensure all cost calculations are accurate prior to submitting a proposal.


	32
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI A 1 Page 18
	Please confirm the intended contract form to be negotiated (e.g., the BP54-IT, the IT Service Contract (IT-SC) (REV 1/19/2024) form provided on the Division of Procurement Services website, etc.).

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder will be required to execute a State BP54-IT with appropriate riders as determined by the Department.


	33
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV III Page 14
	Appendix F is not listed in the required attachments. Where should it be inserted into the proposal?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Part III, C.2.f., File 3 of the RFP.


	34
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	IT Service Contract (IT-SC) Template_1.19.24.pdf (maine.gov). 2. INVOICES AND PAYMENTS Page 7
	Can the warranty period be changed to 90 days instead of one full year?



	
	Answer

	
	The Department and MaineIT will negotiate any proposed exceptions with the awarded Bidder, as part of the contract negotiation process.


	35
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F Page 26
	How many real-time external integrations are there currently in consult tracking system? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department currently uses one (1) real-time internal integration and one external integration.


	36
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F Page 26
	If no PII/PHI data is shared or accessed by offshore resources, can offshore resources be used for development and technical activities where no access to PII/PHI data is required?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes. The awarded Bidder must ensure all data remains within the Continental United States.


	37
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II 3 Page 7
	Ability to bypass disease reporting - please elaborate or share a use case on bypassing the disease reporting? 

	
	Answer

	
	The use case would be: if someone on-call takes a call and answers the question without forwarding to an additional resource, then the information does not need the ability to be assigned out because the consult was completed by the person who took the call.


	38
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Contract Terms
	The RFP's requirements may drive some vendors to have to develop custom software (i.e., the State gets ownership) to be added onto existing software (i.e., the State gets a license), and this may lead to confusion as to the IP rights of the parties for the software provided to the State. Please confirm that the selected vendor will have an opportunity to discuss and negotiate Intellectual Property rights (e.g., ownership, licenses, etc.) prior to contract award to ensure that the vendor's IP rights in pre-existing software is protected.

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder will be given the opportunity to negotiate the terms of the contract. 


	39
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II B Page 9
	IRS 1075 is mentioned in one of the documents incorporated into the RFP. Please confirm whether any Federal Tax Information will be handled under this contract. 

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should describe in their proposal how they intend to comply with the terms of all MaineIT Policies and Standards.


	40
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided 
	a. Will this system be used by Medical Epidemiology, Disease Surveillance, or multiple parts of Maine CDC? 
b. Do you plan to link this to the State of Maine NBS? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. No.
b. No.


	41
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Do you require a portal to allow external users to enter data (e.g., provider portal allowing providers to enter lab data), or similar functionality?

	
	Answer

	
	No, this system is not designed to take in lab data.


	42
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	For any portals, how many users do you anticipate for the portal?

	
	Answer

	
	This is not applicable at this time. 
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